CI I Z Or NORT, kPOLE

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Monday, May 21, 2012

Committee of the Whole - 6:30 p.m.
Regular City Council Meeting — 7:00 p.m.

COUNCIL MEMBERS MAYOR
Richard Holm 488-1776  Douglas Isaacson 488-8584
Sharron Hunter- Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 488-4282
Ronald Jones- Mayor Pro Tem 488-3579
Thomas McGhee 455-0010
Derrick Nelson 490-2446
Bryce Ward- Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 488-7314 CITY CLERK

10.

11.

Kathy Weber, MMC 488-8583

Call to Order/Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag —
Invocation

Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Minutes
Communications from the Mayor
Council Member Questions of the Mayor

Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City
Clerk

Ongoing Projects Report

Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen)

Old Business



12. New Business
a. Presentation of the 2011 Annual Audit by Mikunda, Cottrell, Inc.

b. Resolution 12-15, A Resolution Of The City Of North Pole To Enter Into A
Cooperative Agreement With The Santa’s Senior Center To Implement The
Community Development Block Grant #11-CDBG-004 Administered By The
Alaska Department Of Commerce, Community And Economic Development In
The Amount Of $73,261 For The Senior Center Kitchen Upgrade Project

13. Council Comments
14. Adjournment

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing
impaired individuals. The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this
service. All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter. All City Council
meetings are recorded on CD. These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City
Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125
Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.



Regular City Council Meeting
May 7, 2012
7:00 p.m.

Committee of the Whole — 6:30 P.M.
Regular City Council Meeting — 7:00 P.M.

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, May 7, 2012 in the
Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Mayor Isaacson called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, May 7, 2012 to order at
7:00 p.m.

There were present: Absent/Excused
Mr. Holm Absent

Ms. Hunter Excused

Mr. Jones

Mr. McGhee

Mr. Nelson

Mr. Ward

Mayor Isaacson

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG
Led by Mayor Isaacson

INVOCATION
Invocation was given by Ron Jones

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Jones moved to Approve the Agenda of May 7, 2012

Seconded by Mr. McGhee

Discussion
None

PASSED

YES -5 - Jones, Ward, Nelson, McGhee, Isaacson
NO -0 -

Abstained- 0

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Jones moved to Approve the minutes of April 16, 2012

Seconded by Mr. McGhee
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Discussion
Mr. Ward asked for changes to his name be made on page 11 of the minutes to change it from
Mr. Bryce to Mr. Ward.

PASSED

YES -5- Jones, Ward, Nelson, McGhee, Isaacson
NO -0 -

Abstained- 0

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
Communication Highlights from the Mayor for the period ending May 7, 2012
GENERAL.:

« The Status of Eielson: The local efforts to inject our concerns into the move of the 354™ Fighter
Wings’ Aggressor Squadron of F16s appear to have had some beneficial effects. On April 25, the three
local mayors, joined by Anchorage Mayor Sullivan, sent a letter to Brigadier General Mark McLeod who
led the SATAF, Site Activation Task Force. The letter was forwarded to Council by email. The letter
asked for clarifications of conflicting statements made by Air Force leadership. A response of receipt of
letter was received and the Congressional Delegation was given a briefing that also had some issues
needing clarification, to which another combined mayor letter will be forthcoming.

To keep up-to-date and find copies of correspondence, visit KeepTheF16s.com.

The Alaska Command presented a briefing on the DRAFT JPARC EIS, the Joint Pacific Alaska Range
Complex Environmental Impact Study, which, while independent of the F16 move, nevertheless did not
in our opinion adequately address the environmental impacts to the range and proximity by the transfer of
the F16 Falcons to Joint Base Elmendorf Richardson (JBER). The local mayors have sent a letter
requesting a 60 day extension to the June 7 comment period; we have been joined by similar letters from
the Greater Fairbanks Chamber of Commerce and the Alaska Aviation Board.

JPARC EIS public hearings are scheduled throughout the state from May 11-23. For more information,
visit www.jparceis.com

» The Status of Energy Relief and Projects: | do not believe our local businesses and residents
can afford a repetition of the high cost of energy bills we suffered through this past winter. The
local mayors are stepping up our efforts to bring relief to the Interior. The borough mayor is
working with stakeholders to try to expedite LNG deliveries to the Interior. The three mayors
will be discussing the Royalty Oil option | floated in various newspapers across Alaska,
including the Daily News-Miner on April 10. Senator Coghill is also helping to contact
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appropriate State Departments to move this idea forward, and | will be presenting this
information to the Institute of the North in Anchorage, Thursday night, May 10.

« City Bond Refinancing: As approved by Council, the City of North Pole is being represented
by Cheryl Brooking, Esg., or Wohlforth, Brecht, Cartledge & Brooking of Anchorage in the
refinancing of the City’s 2005 Assessment Bonds in the combined issuance with the Alaska
Municipal Bond Bank’s 2012 Series Two Bonds. Chip Pierce is our point of contact at the Bond
Bank. Due to the action, the City’s Net Present Value savings this year will be approximately
$40,707 and the Cost of Issuance and Rounding returned to the City will be approximately
$14,702 for a total savings this year to the City of $55,409. Because the City Clerk and | both
serve on the AML board which is meeting in Anchorage on Friday, May 11, we will be
travelling to Anchorage a day early to meet with Bond Counsel to sign papers, thus saving the
rate payers the additional expenses associated with travel to Seattle.

* Critical Employee Emergency Planning (CEEP) Training: Led by NPFD Chief Lane, NPPD Acting
Chief Dutra, all City employees and Council members are encouraged to take this training. The goal is to
train our staff to have build a pre-plan necessary for the families of the responders (and Council members)
to feel safe and secure during a city-/area-wide emergency that will take the responder/Council member
away from their families. The training will identify what resources need to be on hand and how to go
about securing them. The classes will be held in the Fire Department Annex and are scheduled for:

+ May 9, 1-5pm

+ May 11, 8 am — Noon

+Mayl1l&8, 7-9pm

» Welcome Home Soldiers! We welcome our 4000 plus soldiers and airmen who have been
deployed, largely to Afghanistan, are in the process of coming home! The return will mean that
there will be more cars at intersections, more people in our stores and restaurants, and possibly
more response by our public safety personnel as families may struggle to re-adapt to being
together. If you know of families that are struggling, please encourage them to take advantage of
the numerous programs and activities provided to them by the Army, Air Force, and various
community agencies. Remember to take a moment when you see a military member and thank
them for their service.

PLAN TO ATTEND!! A community parade, “Salute to Our Military Parade, or STOMP, will be
held in Fairbanks on May 12. There’s a great website full of information and to volunteer to be
involved and to donate for expenses: www.stompfairbanks.com.

* VOLUNTEERS WELCOME!! Summer Festival Committee: has begun preparing for the July 4,
2012 event. This year, July 4 falls on a Wednesday which means that a lot of people will be in
town who might otherwise have been elsewhere. If you, or your business, would like to be
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involved in the planning and underwriting of expenses/activities/prizes, please join us this
Wednesday, May 9, 16 & 30 and every Wednesday in June at 6 pm here at City Hall. It’s going
to be a great event! LATE ADDITION: THE MEETING TIMES MAY CHANGE

* EMATS: The Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation System Policy meeting will be held
this Wednesday at the Peger Road DOT&PF Conference Room at 10:00 a.m. The public is
welcome to comment during two designated comment periods at the beginning and near the end
of the meeting. One of the items the City of North Pole is working on is getting funding to push
to FY2013 the $2 million construction of the “Pedestrian Facilities” (i.e., sidewalks) along St.
Nicholas. Funding has been freed up from pushing back a College Road project. For more
information, talk to Bill or me.

* Various Meetings in addition to those mentioned above, included:
o weekly at NPMS giving “Words of Wisdom” and interaction with students and staff
e guest speaker for North Pole issues at NPHS Alaska Studies classes
e met with Railroad officials on issues affecting North Pole, including impact by
layoffs and production reductions at Flint Hills and Congressional budget reductions
e AND AWHOLE LOT MORE!

MEDIA:

Apr 28 & May 5: Mayor Isaacson was on KINP (1170 AM, 100.3 FM) 8 — 9 a.m. “Over the
Coffee Cup.”

May 3: Mayor Isaacson joined FNSB Mayor Luke Hopkins, Denali Bank Pres. Steve Lundgren,
and Senators Lisa Murkowski and Mark Begich on an interview by KTUU, Ch2, Anchorage and
carried by KTVF, Ch 11, Fairbanks, regarding the possible move of Eielson’s F16’s to
Anchorage.

UPCOMING (This is NOT conclusive, see above for other events, dates, and times, or call the
Clerk or Mayor for other possible upcoming events)

* May 10 & 11: Mayor Isaacson and City Clerk Kathy Weber will be attending AML and other meetings
in Anchorage (AML pays for expenses related to this meeting).

e May 12 10 am to Noon: STOMP—Salute To Our Military Parade will start at Ft Wainwright and end
at Pioneer Park. THIS IS A BIG DEAL! OVER 5000 SOLDIERS MARCHING! PLEASE PLAN TO
ATTEND!! For more info: www.stompfairbanks.com

* May 15, 7 pm: NPHS Graduation at the Carlson Center

* May 16, 2 pm: 1-25 Redeployment Ceremony, Gov. Parnell to be speaker, at the Ft Wainwright AHA

« May 16, 6 pm: NP Elementary 5" Grade Advancement Ceremony @ NPE

City of North Pole
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« May 16, 6:30 pm: NP Middle School 8" Grade Advancement Ceremony @ NPMS
» May 17: Mayor Isaacson may be in Anchorage attending the Change of Command for US Army Alaska

(USARAK) Commanding General Ray Palumbo

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR
None

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK

Fire Dept, Chief Lane
e The awards dinner went well on April 27" at the Hotel North Pole.
e Clean up day was slow and they didn’t do as much as they had in the past years.
e Preparedness classes started last week. All employees are required to take these classes.
He has not heard from those council members who have not taken the NIMS testing.

e May 19" is the City Open House and Cruis’n with Santa. Be sure to visit all three sites
starting at 10:00 a.m.

Police Department, Lt. Dutra
e None

Accountant, Lisa Vaughn
e None

FNSB Representative

The FNSB Assembly met on Thursday, May 3. Among the items discussed was the introduction of the
Borough FY 13 budget (a copy of which is in my office). No other items directly impacting the City of
North Pole were discussed (as published on the Agenda, | did leave early in order to appear on the KTUU
TV special).

The next scheduled FNSB Assembly meeting will be held 5:45 pm on May 10, 2012. No items
of direct impact to the City of North Pole are scheduled to be heard.

For a list of meeting times and agendas, go to http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly.

Director of City Services, Bill Butler
Building Department
e No building permit issued for complete structures (single roof replacement permit issued to date)

Public Works

City of North Pole
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e Resolution before Council for FMATS project match agreement for $18,501.97 for repaving several
local roads (estimated total construction cost: $178,169.14)
= Park Way (Finell to Old Richardson Highway)
= Yukon Drive
=  First Avenue-Lewis Street-2" Avenue Loop
e Continuing to submit additional documentation required for the Santa Seniors kitchen remodel project
= Majority of supplemental documents submitted
= Series of supporting resolutions before Council this evening
e Have advertised Public Works Summer hire positions
= Will be reviewing applicants tomorrow and hope to interview candidates this week
e Public Works Summer Projects list attached

Utility Department
e Discussed with Flint Hills their construction of a dedicated sewer force main from industrial park

(H&H lift station) to waste water treatment plant

= Dedicated industrial park sewer main has been a priority project since at least 2005
= Flint Hills proposes to construct the sewer main this summer

= When completed, Flint Hills will turn sewer main over to City

= Estimated project cost: $3 million

Public Works Department

Project
Project Location Manager Estimated cost
Park Way paving Finell Drive to Richardson Hwy. DOT See Note #1
Park Way shoulder Santa Claus Lane to Finell Drive DOT See Note #2
widening
Beautification Santa | Santa Claus Lane roundabouts and City $10,000 (est.
Claus Lane vicinity materials and
labor)
Bus stop replacement | Parking lot, North Pole Plaza Mall FNSB Undetermined
Transportation
Santa Claus Lane East side of Santa Claus Lane Cary DOT See Note #2
sidewalk Street to Kevin’s Way
East 1 Ave./Lewis | 1% Ave.-Lewis Street-2"" Ave. loop DOT See Note #1
Street/2™ Ave.
paving
East 3 Ave. 3" Ave. between Santa Claus Lane DOT See Note #2
sidewalk and Snowman Lane
West 4™ Ave. paving | 4™ Ave. between Holiday Streetand | DOT See Note #3
Old Richardson Hwy.
Holiday Road paving | Holiday Road from NPHS Blvd. and | DOT See Note #3
4" Ave,
Snowman Lane 4™ Ave. to 5™ Ave. DOT See Note #2
sidewalk

City of North Pole
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East 5" Ave. paving | Santa Claus Lane to Richardson Hwy. | DOT $800,000 (est.)
East 5™ Ave. Blanket Blvd. to St. Nicholas Drive. | DOT See Note #2
sidewalk
East 5" Ave. 15 LED | East 5" Ave. DOT See Note #4
Street lights
East 8" Ave. 13 LED | Old Richardson Hwy. to Blanket DOT See Note #4
street lights Blvd.
Santa Claus Lane Section Santa Claus 5™ Ave. to 6" DOT See Note #3
paving Ave.
East 6 Ave paving | Santa Claus Lane to Snowman Lane DOT See Note #3
Davis Road sidewalk | 5" Ave. to Elementary School DOT See Note #2
Kit Blvd. paving Southern loop of Kit Blvd. DOT See Note #3
Beaver Blvd. paving | Southern loop of Beaver Blvd. DOT See Note #3
Blanket Blvd. 22 Blanket Blvd. DOT See Note #4
LED street lights
East 8" Ave. 15 LED | East 8" Ave. DOT See Note #4
street lights
NPHS Blvd. 16 LED | Old Richardson Hwy. to high school DOT See Note #4
street lights
Project Estimated cost

Project Location Manager
Patriot Drive 11 LED | Patriot Drive DOT See Note #4
street lights
Shellinger Street Shellinger Street DOT See Note #4
4 LED street lights

Note #1: FMATS Preventative Maintenance paving project; total cost $235,984; City share,

$24,505.

Note #2: FMATS Preventative Maintenance paving project; total cost, $178,169; City share,

$18,502.

Note #3: FMATS Bike Path Rehabilitation and Connections Project; total cost $909,371; City

share $52,896.

Note #4: FMATS LED Street Light Conversion Project Stage 2; total cost $2.25 million, City
share estimated at $12,000.

Utility Department

Project Location Project Manager Estimated cost
Utility garage Homestead Road City $1.2 million
Industrial Force H&H road to sewer Flint Hills Resources | $3 million

Sewer Main

treatment plant

(preliminary estimate)
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City Clerk
e Steve Dutra has been named interim Chief of Police for the North Pole Police
Department.

e Ads went out to Fairbanks Daily News Miner and AML for the Police Chief position and
it is open until filled.

e 1 will be attending the IIMC Conference in Portland, Oregon from May 17 through 25".
Marilyn Zrucky will be acting clerk while I am out of town.

e Great-West Retirement Services® (Great-West) will be in Fairbanks from May 21-25 and would
like to visit us. Great-West is the record keeper for the State of Alaska SBS, Deferred
Compensation and PERS Tier IV /TRS 11l Retirement Plans. They will be available to visit our
location and can provide individual appointments, a general Q&A discussion and/or a seminar
presentation. The purpose of these services is to provide financial education. They can discuss
topics such as: investment building blocks, asset allocation, risk and return, general plan features
and highlights, etc. If you or your staff members are interested in meeting with a GWRS
representative or hosting a presentation, please let me know.

e | am in the process of putting all the documentation together to take to Anchorage for the
signing of the bonding documents.

ONGOING PROJECTS
No Reports

CITIZENS COMMENTS — 5 Minutes
None

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS

APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE’S LIFE & AD&D BENEFITS WITH
LINCOLN NATIONAL AND HEALTHPLAN TO AW REHN

Diana Stewart and Craig Kestran from Alaska USA Insurance Brokers presented the bids to
council on the Life, AD&D, and Health Plans for the City. Ms. Stewart gave written
recommendations to council on what she thought would help the city save money and keep the
grandfathered rights for the employees and city’s benefit. The recommendations were as
follows:
1. Move the Life, AD&D from CIGNA to Lincoln National for a savings of $2750 at the
current $25,000 benefit, or $1,000 if you increase the Life and AD&D benefit to $50,000.

2. Offer a voluntary Life & AD&D program to your employees through Lincoln National.
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3. Move the STD plan from Standard to Lincoln National for an annual savings of $8,820.

4. We recommend you consider increasing your Specific Stop Loss Deductible to $35,000.
As the frequency of Specific claims increases the premium will continue to rise. By
increasing the Specific Loss Premium to $35,000 you are effectively reducing the plans
fixed costs by approximately $20,000.

5. Move from the bundled CIGNA plan to the AW Rehn quote with Companion Life as the
Stop Loss carrier. Although the AW Rehn and HCC Life provide the lowest fixed cost
the savings is eliminated with the increased claims liability HCC Life is proposing.

With AW Rehn as the TPA we recommend you use Medical Rehabilitation Consultants
as the UR vendor and Caremark as the Pharmacy vendor. PPO services would remain a
hospital only requirement, utilizing PCHS as a wrap network around the Providence
Hospital/AK USA PPO agreement. AUIB Consulting fees would be contracted directly
rather than paid as commissions. The projected fixed costs savings is $63,000 per year.

Public Comment
None

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve Recommendations by Alaska USA Brokers as follows:

1. Move the Life, AD&D from CIGNA to Lincoln National for a savings of $1,000 at the
current $50,000;

2. Offer a voluntary Life & AD&D program to your employees through Lincoln National;
3. Move the STD plan from Standard to Lincoln National for an annual savings of $8,820;
4. Increase Specific Stop Loss Deductible to $35,000 reducing the plans fixed costs by
approximately $20,000;

5. Move from the bundled CIGNA plan to the AW Rehn quote with Companion Life as the
Stop Loss carrier;

6. Use Medical Rehabilitation Consultants as the UR vendor and Caremark as the
Pharmacy vendor. The projected fixed costs savings is $63,000 per year

Seconded by Mr. Jones

Discussion

Mr. Ward was happy to see that the council was looking at this but wanted to keep everything
the same and to decrease the costs by not increasing the AD&D.

Mr. Ward moved to reduce the Life insurance from $50,000 to $25,000.

Failed for lack of a second.

Mr. Jones stated that he and Mr. Ward would like to see this come before the Finance
Committee and asked how soon Alaska USA needed all the paperwork back.
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Mr. Jones moved to table this and discuss with the Finance Committee on May 14, 2012 and
then the council meeting of May 21, 2012.

Seconded by Mr. Nelson

Discussion
Mr. Jones wanted to postpone the meeting and put this forward to the finance committee for
review. He felt it was too soon to decide tonight.

Mr. Ward wanted clarification on the date of the Finance Committee meeting.
Mayor Isaacson asked what the advantage would be by taking it to the Finance Committee.

Mr. Jones said that it would help for the finance committee to look at the numbers and see if
there are any more savings that could be made.

Mayor Isaacson asked if the Clerk and the people from Alaska USA would be able to attend the
meeting.

Mr. McGhee said that he also has used Alaska USA for the past 9 years and said they are very
thorough and helped him to save money. He also asked what they felt uncomfortable with about
the bid.

Mr. Ward said they are looking at hard numbers and would like to have more time. He doesn’t
see any benefit to postponing this and would like to see Life insurance lowered from $50,000 to
$25,000 but doesn’t see the benefit of delaying the passage of this.

Mr. Jones said the numbers keep changing and would like to re-look at the numbers.

Mayor Isaacson said that because this is insurance he doesn’t see the necessity to give this to the
finance committee.

PASSED

YES -5, Ward, Jones, Nelson, McGhee, Isaacson
NO -0

Absent — Holm, Hunter

RESOLUTION 12-10, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE
AUTHORIZING A MATCHING CONTRIBUTION OF EIGHTEEN THOUSAND FIVE
HUNDRED ONE DOLLARS AND NINETY-SEVEN CENTS TO THE STATE OF
ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FOR
THE FAIRBANKS METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE SURFACE UPGRADES PROJECT

Mr. Butler presented this resolution to council on the matching grant of $18,501 and explained
what this project would entail. He also updated council on where the funds were coming from.
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Public Comment
None

Mr. Jones moved to Approve Resolution 12-10, A Resolution Of The City Of North Pole
Authorizing A Matching Contribution Of Eighteen Thousand Five Hundred One Dollars
And Ninety-Seven Cents To The State Of Alaska Department Of Transportation And
Public Facilities For The Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation System Preventive
Maintenance Surface Upgrades Project

Seconded by Mr. Nelson

Discussion
Mr. Jones was concerned where the money was coming from.

PASSED

YES -5, Ward, Jones, Nelson, McGhee, Isaacson
NO -0

Absent — Holm, Hunter

Mr. McGhee moved to suspend the rules to hear all Resolutions 12-11 through 12-13 as one.

RESOLUTION 12-11, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO ENTER
INTO A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE SANTA’S SENIOR CENTER TO
IMPLEMENT THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT #11-CDBG-004
ADMINISTERED BY THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY
AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $73,261 FOR THE SENIOR
CENTER KITCHEN UPGRADE PROJECT

RESOLUTION 12-12, ARESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE AFFIRMING
ITS EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION
POLICIES

RESOLUTION 12-13, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE
SUPPORTING FAIR HOUSING IN SUPPORT OF THE CITY’S COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT #11-CDBG-004 ADMINISTERED BY THE ALASKA
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
FOR THE SENIOR CENTER KITCHEN UPGRADE PROJECT

Mr. Butler spoke to all three of these resolutions and explained the process of the grant in order
to have it accepted.

Public Comment
None

Mr. McGhee move to Approve Resolution 12-11, 12-12, and 12-13
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Seconded by Mr. Jones

Discussion
None

PASSED

YES -5, Ward, Jones, Nelson, McGhee, Isaacson
NO -0

Absent — Holm, Hunter

RESOLUTION 12-14, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE URGING
THE CONGRESS TO RETAIN THE CURRENT LEVEL OF FUNDING FOR THE
ALASKA RAILROAD UNDER THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
FORMULA FUNDING

Mayor Isaacson introduced this resolution and explained it to council.

Public Comment
None

Mr. Jones moved to Approve Resolution 12-14, A Resolution Of The City Of North Pole
Urging The Congress To Retain The Current Level Of Funding For The Alaska Railroad
Under The Federal Transit Administration Formula Funding

Seconded by Mr. McGhee

Discussion

Mr. McGhee stated that he thought the railroad should be private and that he did not agree with
the Resolution and would vote no.

Mayor Isaacson said this was largely funded by the government.

PASSED

YES -5, Ward, Jones, Nelson, McGhee, Isaacson

NO -0
Absent — Holm, Hunter

COUNCIL COMMENTS

Mr. Ward - is glad to see the health care plan come forward and that council passed it. He
would have liked to see a work shop session on the health plan and feels that council has been
rushed on this to make a decision. He does like the other format that other municipalities have
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with a Committee of the Whole on a different day but there is then more time involved but he

does feel that council should look at these things, building codes, etc. and hash out details with

experts here and look at options to make sure they are doing their duties and making well
educated decisions.

Mr. Jones - he felt rushed and that there are a lot of things that come before them and would
like to see things changed and consider changing code to have more time to review these things
and concern with Finance committee so they can do a better job for the citizens.
e FCVB diner was excellent and he appreciates it. Looks forward to see former employer
get the award (Warbelo’s).
¢ North Pole Fire Department banquet was fabulous and the awards were well deserved.
¢ Police Chief Lindhag’s banquet was a great send off to him. It was a relaxed dinner and
that was good too.
e F-16’s is a done deal and they will be leaving the area. He hates to see it and doesn’t
know what more they can do.

Mr. Nelson — felt that tonight was a productive night. He said it was always hard to take the
numbers of future outcomes and that’s why he leaves his opinion to the experts and accepted
everything they said. He said there is always your vote as to whether or not to vote to approve
something or not if you don’t feel like you’re on solid ground.

McGhee — interesting meeting and that the Health Insuance is an annual things. There is a
struggle with the finance committee and they are brought forward annually. The Finance
committee should talk with the clerk to find out what things are dealt with annually. Everything
we do we do annually. It can be set up in advance.

He is concerned about the four wheelers and that someone could be hurt badly. He said we have
to figure out a way to control the four wheelers and snowmachines in the city limits. He has
decided to start taking pictures of the bad drivers and will share it on Facebook. He encouraged
everyone to be careful. He asked us to be examples by the way we drive. He said we need to
find a better way to support our troops. If you know a soldier who just came home, give him a
hand.

Mayor lIsaacson — spoke about troops returning home and the difficulties that they have
reactivating to civilization. Graduation is coming up and on May 16™ there will be ceremonies at
NPE, NPMS, and NPHS. The Festival Committee meeting is also on that night. His mothers
80™ birthday is coming up and he may leave to visit her in Seattle. He said it’s good not to feel
rushed but there are times that we have experts here and getting list of annual things that are bid
would be a good idea.

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. McGheemoved to adjourn the meeting of May 7, 2012

Seconded by Jones
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No Objection
The regular meeting of May 7, 2012 adjourned at 9:18 p.m.

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City
Council on Monday, May 21, 2012.

Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk
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May 11, 2012

Brigadier General Mark M. McLeod
Director of Logistics

Headquarters, Pacific Air Forces

Joint Base Pearl Harbor-Hickam, HI 95863

Dear Sir,

Thank you again for allowing us to submit additional information and questions for consideration by the
Site Activation Task Force (SATAF) or others when the subjects are not in the SATAF's area of
responsibility. This letter includes comments and questions concerning the treatment of the proposed
action in comparison to the Air Force’s Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) 2005 recommendation
to relocate Eielson AFB’s F-16s (“Aggressors”) to Nellis AFB, NV; the April 25, 2012, Air Force
briefing (enclosed) to the Alaska Congressional Delegation (CODEL) concerning the relocation of the
Aggressors from Eiclson AFB (enclosed); and the nature of the environmental consideration for the
action,

As with our April 25, 2012 letter, we offer our comments in an attempt to ensure the SATAF Team fully
understands our thoughts and concerns, as well as to make our issues easier to understand by various Air
Force and major command staff components.

1. Fiscal Year (FY) 2013 Proposed Action vs. BRAC 2005 Recommendation.

A. Description of the BRAC 2005 Recommendation.

1) Cost of Base Realignment Actions (COBRA) Scenario Summary Report. “Reglign
' [emphasis added] Eiclson AFB. The 354th Wing's assigned ... F-16 Block 40 aircraft will be
distributed to the 57th Wing, Nellis AFB, NV (18 PAA). The ANG Tanker unit and rescue
alert detachment remain. ..."’

2) Air Force justification for the realignment action. “The Air Force recommends realigning
Eielson [AFB], but keeping the base open in a “warm” status using the resident Air National

! coBRA Realignment Summary Report, Package Name COBRA USAF 0056V2 (137.3c1) Realign Eielson AFB (4/27/2005 7:11:22 PM).
{“COBRA")
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Guard units and a portion of the infrastructure to continue operating the base for
USAF/Joint/Combined exercises.”

3) How could essentially the same action be categorized as “realignment” for purposes of
BRAC 2005, but not be considered realignment in the FY 2013 Budget submission?

B. Personnel Movement. As shown below, the BRAC 2005 action required relocation of 20
civilians to support the Aggressor mission at Nellis AFB. *
COBRA TOTAL PERSONNIL SIMMARY RZFOAT (COBRR v6.10)
PERSONNEL SUMMARY FOR: Eielson AFB, AK (FIQM)
PERSONMEL REALIGNMENIS:

To Base: Hellis AFB, NV (RKMF)

2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 Total
Officers 0 0 43 0 0 0 43
Enlisted 1] 0 564 0 0 0 564
Students 0 4] 0 4] 0 0 0
Civilians 0 0 290 0 1] 0 20
TOTAL 2] 0 €27 0 0 0 627

1) Why did essentially the same action require 20 civilian positions to support the mission at
Nellis AFB, but does not require any additional civilian positions at JBER in the FY 2013
Budget submission?

C. Military Construction (MILCON) Requirements. The COBRA Report for the BRAC 2005
action documented approximately $18.5 million in MILCON being required at Nellis AFB.* The
Air Force has stated it assumed no MILCON requirement at JBER in the proposed FY 2013
Budget submission,

MilCon for Base: Nellis AFB, WV (RIMF)

All valuas in 2005 Constant Dollacs (8K}

Haw Hew Using Rehab Rehab Tocal

FAC Ticle 422 ¥ilCon Cosc* Rehab Typs Cosp* Coss*
1711 Genexsl Fusposs Instructicn Building sr 12,833 n/ass 0 Defaulc n/a** 3,638
2111 Aizczsit Maintenancs Rangar 13 6,890 n/a*é 0 Dafaulc n/ase 2,467
2113 Adzcrafc Corrzosion Control Hangax SF 5,013 n/acs 0 Dafauls n/ass 2,662
2171 Elecvzonic and ication Maint sr 4,213 n/a** 0 Defaulc n/a*¢ 1,176
2181 Installation Suppoxt Vehiols Maintenance 8T 2,984 n/a%é 0 Dafauls n/ase ()Y
2184 Pazachute And Dingy Maintenance Shop sF 2,447 n/as* 0 Defaulc n/ass 763
6100 Gensral Administzative Building sr 5,819 n/ass 0 Defauls n/ass 1,482
7220 Dining TFacility BF 1,501 n/a*t 0 Defaulc n/a*e 296
7362 Religieus Education Facility sy £68 n/ac* 0 Dafaule n/as* 208
7371 Nuzsery and Child Caze Facilicy sr 1,813 n/a%* 0 Defauln n/s*e 8%0
7417 Reczsetion Center 8T 2,364 n/a*s 0 Default n/as# §72
7421 Indoor Physiasl Titness Taciliecy :) 3 3,633 n/e** 0 Default n/ase 1,129
1721 Flight Simulatox Facility - 5,898 n/a*? 0 Defaule n/as* 3,09
Tocal Constxuatien Cost: 18,483

= Construation Cost Avoid: 0

Total MNev Milaon Cost: 18.402

b Department of Defense Report to the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Commlission, “Departmant of the Air Force Analysis and
Recommendations BRAC 200S,” (Volume V, Part 1 of 2), May 2005, p. 109,

® COBRA. Personnel Summary Report.
* COBRA. Military Construction Assets Report.
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1) Why did essentially the same action require Air Force planning for construction of mission

facilities at Nellis AFB, an installation already operating F-16s, but assume no MILCON
would be required at JBER when adding a new aircraft system that will operate in a harsher
climate regime?

2. Air Force April 25, 2012 Briefing to the CODEL.

D. Overall. The briefing includes the planning numbers and assumptions already provided.

)

2)

Why did the Air Force only include the planning numbers and assumptions from what the
Chief of Staff (CSAF) called a “Table Top Exercise” and not any information from the
SATAF that visited Eielson AFB and JBER? The SATAF report may not be final, but the
data has been collected.

Why has the Air Force still not provided the repeatedly-requested underlying data and
analysis used to support the proposed action’s inclusion in the FY 2013 President’s Budget
(PB) submission?

E. Slide#5.

1)

2)

3)

“Sufficient base operations support will remain to maintain: ....”

a) How much of the $§5 billion Plant Replacement Value (PRV) is represented in the
infrastructure and facilities intended for continued operational support, i.e., not the Air
National Guard (ANG), common use, dormitories and Red Flag facilities identified in the
briefing?

b) What does the Air Force intend to do with the remainder of the taxpayers’ $5 billion

investment in Eielson AFB?

Restates intent to reduce airfield hours/days of operation, but continues to deny this is only
possible by relocating the Aggressors.

a) Ifthe airfield operations can be reduced without the relocation of the Aggressors, what
would be the estimated savings to reduce the operations — as proposed — with the
Apggressors remaining at Eielson AFB?

Commits to not driving a bill for airfield operations to the ANG.

a) Please provide the portion of the AF’s Future Years Defense Program (FYDP) showing
all personnel, operational, maintenance and sustainment funding budgeted, requested or
programmed for Eielson AFB?

F. Slide # 10.

1)

“10 USC § 2687 does not apply to the aircraft relocation or the BOS downsizing.”

a) Slide 9 indicates “Planned reduction of ... 345 Civ authorizations” in FY 2015, Slide 7
indicates planned manpower end-state for this action at Eielson AFB in FY 2015+ as 60
civilians. Therefore, the Air Force is reporting 405 civilian positions at Eielson AFB in



FY 2012 and that the end-state for this action will be only 14.8% of the current civilian
positions. How can 10 USC § 2687 not apply to the reduction of over 85% of the civilian
positions at an installation with at least 300 civilian personnel authorized?

b) Ifthe reduction of 345 civilian positions will not result from the relocation of the aircraft
or reduction in the airfield’s operational hours or BOS downsizing that will then be
possible, it must mean the Air Force can reduce 345 civilian positions at Eielson AFB
without adversely impacting existing missions. Why is the Air Force continuing to fund
345 civilian positions it apparently does not need to support the current Eielson AFB

missions?

2) “Realignments are defined as actions that both reduce and telocate civilians — but no civilians
are being relocated. ... The term ‘realignment’ also excludes reductions in force — and all
civilian reductions are in this category.”

a) 10 USC § 2687 states “(e)(3) The term “realignment” includes any action which both
reduces and relocates functions and civilian personnel positions, but does not include a
reduction in force resulting from workload requirements, reduced personnel or funding
levels, skill imbalances, or other similar causes.” The Air Force states realignment can
only occur when it “reduces and relocates civilian personnel positions. We do not
believe this is correct. Moreover, following the Air Force’s parsing of this language in
the (€)(3) definition, only an action that reduces and relocates functions AND reduces
and relocates civilian personnel positions would qualify as realignments. The Air Force
is arguing that the 10 USC § 2687 definition of realignment does not apply to actions that
only reduce functions, only relocate functions, only reduce civilian personnel positions or

only relocate civilian personnel.

This interpretation is not consistent with previous DoD actions. In BRAC 2005, a
Headquarters & Support Agency (HS&A) Joint Cross Service Group (JCSG) action
relocated 1,640 DoD Civilians from various leased facilities in the National Capital
Region to Fort Belvoir, VA. Two of the specified locations were subject to 10 USC §
2687 as more than 300 DoD Civilians were relocated — Crystal City and the Hoffman
Building relocated 893 and 360 civilians, respectively. There were no positions
eliminated in any of the individual actions. All the actions are designated as
“realignments.” The Air Force’s interpretation of what constitutes a “realignment” and
triggers 10 USC § 2687 restrictions in this proposed action is counter to the definition
used by DoD during BRAC 2005.°

b) Please provide The Air Force General Counsel’s certification that:

5 DoD Base Closure and Realignment Report Vol. I, Part 2 of 2, May 2005, p. H&SA 10 (BRAC Commission Recommendation 132,
Commission Report Vol. 1, pp. 197-199) and COBRA Realignment Summary Report, Package Name LEASED SPACEVH&SA 0069v2
Army NCR Leases (Belvoir)-2.CBR.
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iii.

iv.

G. Slide#11.

10 USC § 2687 requirements do, or do not, apply to the impacts to civilian personnel
positions and personnel resulting from the relocation of F-16s to JBER and follow on
actions enabled by their departure.

ii. the interpretation of 10 USC § 2687(e)(3) provided on slide 10 is how “realignments”

are routinely defined for Air Force actions.

reducing 345 civilian positions at an installation with 405 civilians authorized does
not invoke 10 USC § 2687 requirements because no civilians are being relocated,

civilian positions eliminated by relocating the Aggressors to JBER meet the DoD
legal interpretation one or more of the terms: “reduction in force resulting from
workload requirements, ... reduced personnel or funding levels, ... skill imbalances,
... or other similar causes.” Identify which of the term(s) is/are being used to justify
the lack of 10 USC § 2687 compliance in this action.

no additional civilian positions will be required at JBER to support the Aggressors
and its missions after relocation.

1) Contrary to its interpretation that civilian losses to BOS changes do not count for
10 USC § 2687, the Air Force acknowledges 10 USC § 993 will be invoked because “The
relocation ... will reduce ... by about 623 [and the] reduction of BOS will reduce ... by
about 583" and they must be “Considered together....”

a) Please explain why impacts from relocating the Aggressors and changes to BOS are not
combined to assess the applicability of 10 USC § 2687 (slide 10), but must be combined
to assess the applicability of 10 USC § 993 (slide 11)?

H. Slide # 13.

1) Note from presentation. “No cost savings associated with infrastructure changes because it
[Eielson AFB] is staying open.”

a) Ifno infrastructure savings arc programmed because Eielson AFB is staying open, please
certify all infrastructure, facilities, etc. at Eielson AFB ~ including those no longer
needed or vacated by the Aggressors and is not needed for “future use, such as
contingency or exercise” — will receive the same level of support in the future as it is in

FY

2012,

b) What portions of the base are “needed future use, such as contingency or exercise?”

¢) What portions of the base will not be “needed for future use, such as contingency or
exercise” and at what level will these portions be maintained?

d) What are the anticipated cost increases to build, renovate, and properly maintain
infrastructure, facilities, etc. at JBER to support the Aggressors new home?



1. Slide # 14.

1) Does the summary of property disposal procedures and authorities included on slide 14
suggest the Air Force intends to dispose of the property at Eielson AFB sometime during the
FYDP?

2) If so, what is the extent of the planned divestiture and the authority the Air Force believes
will be used to execute it?

3) Ifnot, why did the Air Force believe a discussion of property disposal is relevant to this
action?

J. Slide # 15.

1) The summary of grant authority and grants awarded to the Fairbanks North Star Borough
(“Borough”) has no relationship to the proposed relocation of the Aggressors to JBER. The
grants resulted from the desire of the Borough to support DoD’s military installations and
operations located in the Fairbanks Community. The Joint Land Use Planning effort will
protect the base from encroachment, although it appears PACAF s plans for the installation
introduce significant questions about “what” needs to be protected. The Defense
Diversification Study funds were used to help the Borough develop strategies to mitigate the
impact of large scale military deployments in the Fairbanks region.’ The majority of the
impacts needing mitigation strategies were associated with troop movements at Fort
Wainwright,

2) What was the intended purpose of including historical information in a presentation about a
proposed, future action?

3. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Compliance. The schedule provided for the proposed
relocation of the Aggressors to JBER indicates the Air Force assumes only an Environmental
Assessment (EA) will be completed. The short schedule (this is the only schedule that reasonably
allows the Aggressor move in FY 2013) for the environmental consideration must mean that the Air
Force has already concluded the outcome of the consideration and made its movement decision.
This clearly violates the tenets of NEPA that mandates completion of the environmental
consideration prior to making a final decision on the action.

A. Why has the Air Force assumed away the need to complete an Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) for an action that increases the total number of aircraft at JBER by adding dissimilar
aircraft to already highly-congested, Anchorage-regional airspace with documented significantly
sensitive environmental issues?

B. What will be the impact on the schedule if an EIS is completed?

6 “Strategles to Mitigate the impact of Large Scale Military Deployments in the Fairbanks, Alaska Region,” December 2006, {Report
funded by DoD Office of Ecanomic Adjustment’s Defense Diversification Grant Program and Fairbanks North Star Borough, AK.)
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C. An EIS allows public input into the environmental consideration. We have indications that both
the State of Alaska and Anchorage residents want to provide input into the environmental
consideration through the public scoping process to begin the consideration and at the conclusion
of environmental analysis. Fairbanks residents would like the same consideration.

On behalf of our communities, we thank you for your commitment to transparency and pledge to serve
as a conduit to the correct offices for matters not within the SATAF responsibility. If we can provide
additional information or be of assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us. We look forward to
responses to the foregoing.

Sincergly,

Luke T. Hopkins, Mayor %Cleworth, Mayor Dougl . Isaacson, Mayor
Fairbanks North Star Borough City of Fairbanks City of North Pole

cc:

General Norman A. Schwartz, Chief of Staff, USAF (w enc)
General Gary L. North, Commander, PACAF

enc:
Air Force Briefing to the CODEL, April 25, 2012
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Office of the Mayor
Fairbanks North Star Borough
Alaska -

Hroclamation

WHEREAS, it is agreed upon that support for local businesses and organizations,
referred to as “Think Local,” is important to and strengthens the economic stability and
long term sustainability of the community; and
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WHEREAS, local is broadly defined as Interior Alaska and all the communities, towns,
and municipalities, and villages, incorporated or otherwise, located within the
boundaries, and more narrowly defined, for the purpose of study and accountability, as
the Fairbanks North Star Borough, and
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WHEREAS, support for local businesses and organizations entails a goal of 10% shift
from non-local expenditures; and

o

WHEREAS, support is also attending local events, participating in local programs, such
as media, arts, sports, and entertainment; volunieering, entrepreneurship, philanthropy,
sustaining local agriculture, environmental stewardship, and responsible resource
allocation; and
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WHEREAS, economic stability relies on the fortification that has made the community
unique, strong and prosperous; and
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WHEREAS, long term sustainability requires addressing present and future challenges
for continued growth in cultural ties and social welfare, emotional nourishment, and
economic wellbeing of the community:

P22

i
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NOW, THEREFORE, I, Luke Hopkins, Mayor of the Fairbanks North Star Borough,
and I, Jerry Cleworth, Mayor of the City of Fairbanks, and I, Douglas W. Isaacson,
Mayor of the City of North Pole, Alaska, by the authority vested in us, hereby
proclaim May 15th, 2012, as a day to urge all citizens to ensure our
communtty’s success, by adopting the philosophy of

“THINK LOCAL”
when making purchase decisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this 15* day of May

ke fC

L opkins, Mayor
Fé#rbanks North Star Borough

Z e

Jerry Cleworth, Mayor
City of Fairbanks

Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor
Municipal Borough Clerk City of North Pole

ATTEST:

A D Vi

Vi .z...\\\./ ..:..\s AN :.%/.: AN A

NGNS NG AN
R N K BN KNGO
N e I S IS sttt



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Basic Financial Statements,
Supplementary Information, and

Single Audit Reports

Year Ended December 31, 2011



(This page left blank intentionally)



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Table of Contents

Exhibit  Page

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report 1-2

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets A-1 4
Statement of Activities A2 5
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds:

Balance Sheet B-1 6
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Assets B-2 7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances B-3 8
Reconciliation of Change in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities B-4 9
General Fund - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual C-1 10

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund:

Statement of Net Assets D-1 11
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Net Assets D-2 12
Statement of Cash Flows D-3 13

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 14-30

Supplementary Financial Information

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements

and Schedules:
General Fund:
Balance Sheet E-1 33
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual E-2 34-37

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet F-1 40
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances F-2 41



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Table of Contents, continued

Exhibit  Page

FINANCIAL SECTION, continued

Supplementary Financial Information, continued
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements

and Schedules, continued:
Debt Service Fund -
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance G-1 43

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund —-
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Assets H-1 45

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards I-1 46

Schedule of State Financial Assistance J-1 47
SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 49-50

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance
with OMB Circular A-133 51-52

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance
with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement

Jor State Single Audits 53-54
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 55-56
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 57

Corrective Action Plan 58



Mikunda, mecimrey Anes | B McGladrey
CO[[I'GH & CO, Inc.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North
Pole, Alaska, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City of North Pole's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Pole, Alaska, as of December
31,2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated XXXX,
2012 on our consideration of City of North Pole’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

City of North Pole has not presented the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to supplement, although not to be
part of, the basic financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of North Pole’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Schedule of State Financial Assistance, and the
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, listed in the table of contents as
supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is required by
U.S Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance is required by the Stare of Alaska
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

We also have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the City of North Pole’s basic financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2010 which are not presented with the accompanying financial statements. In our report
dated May 11 2011, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective financial statements of the
govermnmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information. That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City of North Pole’s financial statements as a whole. The individual
fund financial statements and schedules related to the December 31, 2010 financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the December 31, 2010 financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 2010 individual fund
financial statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements from which they have been derived.

Anchorage, Alaska
XXXX, 2012

J
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Statement of Net Assets

Assets

Cash and investments
Receivables:
Sales and property taxcs
Accounts
Grants and shared revenucs
Asscssments
Other
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory
Restricted cash and investments
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within onc year:
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Bonds and loan
Capital leases
Due in more than one year:
Loan
General obligation bonds
Special assessment bonds
Revenue bonds
Unamortized bond premium
Capital leases
Total liabilitics

Net Asscts

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilitics and net assets

December 31, 2011

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Exhibit A-1

Business-
Governimental type
Activitics Activities Total

$ 2,078,769 786,340 2,865,109

329,511 - 329,511
6,390 125,459 131,849

50,804 192,507 243,311
1,032,156 - 1,032,156
9,511 - 9,511
(6,236) (5,636) (11,872)

- 17,264 17,264

40,843 267,743 308,586

5,389 5,389

365,316 3,553,163 3,918,479
3,345,998 15,256,205 18,602,203

$ 7,253,062 20,198,434 27,451,496
194,030 165,816 359,846
141,168 - 141,168

- 21,550 21,550

21,746 13,053 34,799
185,353 155,979 341,332
171,172 23,126 194,298

66,440 35,461 101,901
69,634 - 69,634

- 350,000 350,000
1,015,000 1,015,000
100,357 - 100,357

- 535,431 535,431

15.971 - 15,971
171.901 - 171,901
2,152,772 1,300,416 3,453,188
2,272,011 17,888,476 20,160,487
2,828,279 1,009,542 3,837,821
5,100,290 18,898,018 23,998,308

$ 7,253,062 20,198,434 27,451,496




Exhibit A-2
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Asscts
Fees, Operating  Capital
Fines and Grants Grants
Charges and and Govern- Business-
for Contri- Contri- mental type
Activities Expenses  Services butions butions Activities  Activitics Total
Governmental:
General government § 837,455 75,252 - (762,203) - (762,203)
Public safety 4,132,263 602,855 317,700 - (3,211,708) - (3,211,708)
Public works 493,980 - 917 4,209 (488,854) - (488,854)
Community services 99,103 - 8,522 - (90,581) - (90,581)
Interest 70,758 - - - (70,758) - (70,758)
Total governmental
activitics 5,633,559 678,107 327,139 4,209 (4,624,104) - (4,624,104)
Business-type -
water and sewer 2,971,707 1,604,577 403,564 7,280,384 - 6,316,818 6,316,818
Totals $ 8,605,266 2,282,684 730,703 7,284,593 (4,624,104) 6,316,818 1,692,714
Genceral revenues:
Sales and use taxes $ 2,854,936 - 2,854,936
Property taxes 959,554 - 959,554
Grants and entitlemen's not
restricted to a specific purpose 574,242 36,965 611,207
Investment income 61,468 - 61,468
Other 103,720 - 103,720
Transfers (103,124) 103,124 B
Total general revenues and transfers 4,450,796 140,089 4,590,885
Change in net assets (173,308) 6,456,907 6,283,599
Net assets at beginning of year 5,273,598 12441,111 17,714,709
Net assets at end of year $ 5,100,290 18,898,018 23,998,308

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



Exhibit B-1
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2011

Total
Major Funds Govern-
Debt Nonmajor  mental
Assets General Service Funds Funds
Cash and investments $ 1,622,311 224,043 232415 2,078,769
Receivables, net of allowance:
Sales and property taxes 329,511 - - 329,511
Accounts - 6,390 - 6,390
Grants and shared revenues 2,026 - 48,778 50,804
Assessments - 1,032,156 - 1,032,156
Other 9,511 - - 9,511
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (6,236) - (6,236)
Restricted cash - bond reserve - 40,843 - 40,843
Due from other funds 33,895 - # 33,895
Total assets $§ 1 997,254 1,297,196 281,193 3,575,643
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 186,649 - 7,381 194,030
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 141,168 - - 141,168
Due to other funds - - 33,895 33,895
Deferred revenue 179,886 1,032,077 5,467 1,217,430
Total liabilities 507,703 1,032,077 46,743 1,586,523
Fund balances:
Restricted 40,843 78,087 118,930
Committed - 224,276 - 224,276
Assigned - - 156,363 156,363
Unassigned 1,489,551 - - 1,489,551
Total fund balances 1,489,551 265,119 234450 1,989,120

Total liabilities and

fund balances 1,997,254 1,297,196 281,193 3,575,643

@5

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit B-2
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2011

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 1,989,120

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets is different becausc:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and thercfore are not reported in the funds. These
asscts and related accumulated depreciation are as follows:

Land and land improvements $ 365,316
Buildings 3,540,662
Office furniture and equipment 1,513,230
Vehicles and equipment 2,772,717
Infrastructure 1,733,206
Accumulated depreciation (6,213,817)
3,711,314
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.
These assets consist of deferred assessments receivable. 1,032,077
Long-term liabilities are not duc and payable in the current
period and therefore arc not reported as fund liabilities.
These liabilities consist of:
Bonds payable (1,181,797)
Capital leases (241,535)
Unamortized bond premium (15,971)
Accrucd intcrest on bonds (21,746)
Accrued leave (171,172)
(1,632,221)
Net asscts of governmental activitics $ 5,100,290

Sec accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Exhibit B-3

Total
Major Funds Govern-
Debt Nonmajor mental
General Service Funds Funds
Revenucs:
Taxes $ 3,814,490 - - 3,814,490
Licenses and permits 15,495 - - 15,495
Charges for services 386,747 - 59,757 446,504
Intergovernmental:
Federal government 152,640 - 200,530 353,170
State of Alaska 574,242 - 30,485 604,727
Investment income 3,183 58,285 - 61,468
Special asscssments - 74,925 - 74,925
Other revenues 224 926 - 42,595 267,521
Total revenues 5,171,723 133,210 333,367 5,638,300
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 761,658 - 47,679 809,337
Public safety 3,629,301 - 158,350 3,787,651
Public works 392,117 - - 392,117
Community services 70,834 - 8,925 79,759
Debt service:
Principal 67,461 61,062 - 128,523
Interest 13,212 60,733 - 73,945
Capital outlay - - 30,046 30,046
Total expenditures 4,934,583 121,795 245,000 5,301,378
Excess of revenues over expenditures 237,140 11,415 88,367 336,922
Other financing uses - transfers out - - (103,124)  (103,124)
Net change in fund balances 237,140 11,415 (14,757) 233,798
Beginning fund balances 1,252,411 253,704 249207 1,755,322
Ending fund balances § 1,489,551 265,119 234450 1,989,120

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit B-4
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Reconciliation of Change in Fund Balanccs of Governmental Funds

to Statcment of Activitics
Ycar Ended December 31, 2011

Nct change in fund balanccs - total governmental funds $ 233,798

The change in net assets reported for governmental activitics in the Statcment
of Activitics is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, on
the Statcment of Activities, deprcciation expense is recognized to allocate
the cost of thesc items over their estimated useful lives. This is the amount
by which depreciation ($486,717) excecded capital outlays ($4,209). (482,508)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources arc not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the amount of
the decrease in deferred assessments. (74,925)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any cffect on nct assets. Also,
governmental funds report the cffect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when dcbt is first issucd, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the Statements of Activities. This amount is the net cffect
of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items:
Payments on bonds $ 61,062
Payments on capital lcascs 67,460
Amortization of bond premium 9,583

138,105

Interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis
of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. This is the amount of the
decrease in accrued interest payable. 3,188

Some expenscs reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use of current financial resources and, therefore, arc not reported as

cxpenditures in governmental funds. This amount represents the nct

decrease in accrued leave. 9,034

Change in nct asscts of governmental activities $  (173.308)

Sce accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Yecar Ended December 31, 2011

Vartance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxcs $ 3,896,862 3,962,862 3,814,490 (148,372)
Licenses and permits 12,150 12,150 15,495 3,345
Charges for services - ambulance service 376,127 379,772 386,747 6,975
Intergovernmental:
Federal government 98,500 98,500 152,640 54,140
State of Alaska 369,560 421,473 574,242 152,769
Investment income 6,500 6,500 3,183 (3,317)
Other revenuces 224,650 163,593 224,926 61,333
Total revenucs 4,984,349 5,044,850 5,171,723 126,873
Expenditures:
General government 741,098 748,063 761,658 (13,595)
Public safcty 3,506,364 3,469,839 3,629,301 (159,462)
Public works 605,978 582,707 392,117 190,590
Community services 50,236 50,236 70,834 (20,598)
Debt service:
Principal 76,723 76,723 67,461 9,262
Interest 3,950 3,950 13,212 (9,262)
Total expenditures 4984349 4931,518 4,934,583 (3,065)
Excess of revenucs over
expenditures - 113,332 237.140 123,808
Other financing sourccs uscs -
transfers out - (113,332) - 113,332
Net change in fund balance $ - - 237,140 237,140
Beginning fund balance 1,252,411
Ending fund balance $ 1,489,551

See accompanying notcs to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and investments
Receivables:

Grants

Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash

Unamortized bond issuance costs

Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipment
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue
Current portion of bonds and loan payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities, net of current portion:
Revenue bonds
ADEC loan

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Exhibit D-1

2011 2010
$ 786,340 718,935
192,507 .
125,459 141,715
(5,636) (5,636)
17,264 17,264
1,115,934 872,278
267,743 285,917
5.389 5,597
41,987,769 34,653,884
(23,178,401) (22,116,996)
18,809,368 12,536,888
19,082,500 12,828,402
$ 20,198434 13,700,680
165,816 63,693
23,126 18,511
21,550 16,665
13,053 14,402
155,979 190,428
35,461 34,970
414,985 338,669
535,431 545,900
350,000 375,000
885,431 920,900
1,300,416 1,259,569
17,888,476 11,581,018
1,009,542 860,093
18,898,018 12,441,111
$ 20,198434 13,700,680




Exhibit D-2
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Yecar Ended Dececmber 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

2011 2010
Operating revenues - charges for services $ 1,604,577 1,774,714
Operating expenscs:
Water:
Salarics and benefits 240,982 225,713
Other operating expenses 342,606 430,988
Depreciation 371,492 263,116
Total water 955,080 919,817
Sewer:
Salaries and benefits 323,322 314,498
Other operating expenses 390,021 376,323
Depreciation 689,913 488,645
Total sewer 1,403,256 1,179,466
Total operating expenscs 2,358,336 2,099,283
Loss from operations (753,759) (324,569)
Nonoperating revenues (expenscs):
Interest expense (31,639) (35,305)
Sludge removal grant rcvenue 403,564 -
Sludge removal grant expenses (581,732) -
State of Alaska PERS relief 36,965 19,478
Net nonoperating revenues (expenscs) (172,842) (15,827)
Loss before contributions and transfers (926,601) (340,396)
Capital contributions 7,280,384 2,819,779
Transfers in 103,124 -
Change in nct assets 6,456,907 2,479,383
Beginning nct assets 12,441,111 9,961,728
Ending net asscts $ 18,898,018 12441,111

Sce accompanying notes to basic financial statements.




CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in
Nonoperating grants received
Nonoperating grants expended
Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Capital contributions received
Principal and interest paid on long-term debt
Net cash flows from capital
and related financing activities

Net increase in cash and investments
Beginning cash and investments
Ending cash and investments

Cash and investmenits at end of year:

Cash and investments
Restricted cash

Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash
flows from operating aclivities:
Loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Noncash expense - PERS relief
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Customer deposits
Deferred revenue
Net cash flows from operating activities

Noncash capital and related financing activities - Capital assets were donated

to the City

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Exhibit D-,

2011 2010

$ 1,591,269 1,844,165
(630,296)  (850,479)
(522,724)  (522,581)

438249 471,105

103,124 .
403,564 a
(581,732)
(75,044)

(2,885,122) (1,369,955)
2,639,114 1,080,530
(67.966)  (69.921)

(313,974)  (359.346)

49,231 111,759
1,004,852 893,093

$ 1,054,083 1,004,852

Ay 786,340 718,935
267,743 285,917
S 1,054,083 1,004,852

S  (753,759) (324,569)

1,061,405 751,761

36,965 19,478
208 207
= (52,656)

16,256 154,187

102,123 (43,375)
4,615 (1,848)

4,885 11,250
(34,449)  (43,330)

$ 438249 471,105

$ 4,448,763 1,739,249




(1)

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Rcporting Entity
The City of North Pole was formed by a Home Rulc Charter on September 28, 1970 under the

provisions of Alaska Statute, Title 29, as amended. The legislative branch of the government is
comprised of a mayor and six council members. Individual departments arc under the direction
of the mayor, with the cxception of the city clerk, who is under the direction of the City Council.
There are no other entities considered for possible inclusion in the City’s financial reporting
entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statcments (i.e., the statement of net asscts and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activitics of the City. In general, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. Governmental activities, which normally arc supported by taxes and
intergovernmental rcvenues, are reported scparately from business-type activities, which rely
primarily on fees and charges to external partics.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrec to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that arc clearly
identifiablc with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, usc, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Sales taxcs, property taxcs and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instcad as general revenues.

Separatc financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprictary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenucs are recorded when
earned and cxpenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they arc
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenuc as soon as all cligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as cxpenditures
related to compensated absences are recorded only to the cxtent they have matured.

Property and sales taxes, charges for scrvices, leascs, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period arc all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenucs of the current fiscal period. All other revenuc items arc considered to be measurable
and available only when received by the government.

The City reports the following major funds:

Major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the gencral government, except those required to be reported in
another fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the procceds from water and sewer special
assessments and the payment of general obligation and special assessment debt principal
and interest.

Major proprictary fund -
The Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City
water and sewer systems.

Private-scctor standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprictary fund financial statcments to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activitics and enterprisc funds, subject to the
same limitation. The City has clccted not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a gencral rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rulc are allocated administration fecs and
charges between the enterprise funds and the various other funds and departments. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continucd

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, continued
Amounts rcported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources arc reported as general revenues rather than as
program rcvenues. In addition, general revenues include all taxes, investment income, and State
of Alaska entitlement revenues.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenucs and expenses gencrally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Fund arc charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating cxpenses for the Enterprisc Fund include the costs of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meecting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenucs and expenses.

Budgets
The annual City operating budget is prepared by management by the eighth week of the

preceding ycar to which it relates. All funds arc budgeted on an annual basis encompassing a
fiscal yecar. The Capital Project Funds have project-length budgets. The budget is then
submitted to the City Council for review and approval. Amendments to the budget can occur
any time during the fiscal year through City Council action. The legal level of budgetary control
for all funds is at the function or activity level. Unencumbered funds remaining at the end of the
current fiscal year may be reallocated for the purposes set forth in the budget proposal.

An annual budget for the General Fund is legally adopted on the same modified accrual basis
used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures.

Annual budgets arc also adopted for the Enterprise Fund. Howcver, generally accepted
accounting principles do not require the adoption of budgets for Enterprisc Funds, and budgetary
comparisons arc not included for this fund since the measurement focus is upon determination
of net income and financial position.

Central Treasury
A central trcasury is uscd to account for cash from the funds of the City to maximize intercst

income. Investments are stated at fair value. Investment carnings are allocated to the funds
based on their respective cash balances.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposcs of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise Fund considers all cash accounts to
be cash and cash cquivalents. The central treasury, which holds cash and investments, is used
essentially as a cash management pool by cach fund.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Inventory
[nventories are valued at the lower of cost or market in the Enterprise Fund, and consist

primarily of chemicals for the water and sewer utility.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the year are referred to as either “due to / from other funds” (i.e., the current portion
of interfund loans) or “advances to / from other funds” (i.c., the noncurrent portion of interfund
loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to / from other
funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues carned at year-end and
not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales taxcs,
special assessment receivables, and state and federal grants. Business-type activities report fees
for water and sewer services and other receivables from customers as their major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue
accruals for sales taxes, special asscssment receivables, and grants and other similar
intergovernmental revenues, since they are usually both measurable and available. Nonexchange
transactions measurable but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in
accordance with the modified accrual basis, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of
all revenues earned at year-cnd and not yet received. Fees for water and sewer services and
other receivables from customers compose the majority of proprietary fund receivables.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the
periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues

In applying the measurable and available concepts to grants and intergovernmental revenues, the
legal and contractual requircments of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance.
There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended
on the specific purpose or project before any amounts are considered “earned”; therefore,
revenues are recognized based upon expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually
unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply
with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time
of receipt or earlier if the measurable and available criteria are met.

Interfund Transactions
During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds,
including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and
service debt. The accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as
transfers. Opcrating subsidies are also rccorded as transfers.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Compensated Absences
The City allows employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits.

All vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the
governmental fund financial statements only if they have matured (e.g. the employee has
terminated employment).

Capital Assets
Capital asscts, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable

governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, sidewalks, etc.) have been capitalized on a prospective basis.
Capital asscts are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects arc constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the useful
life of the asset arc not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 15-37 years
Vehicles 5-20 years
Equipment 5-20 years
Infrastructure 20 years
Sewer and water system 20-30 years

Deferred Grant Revenue
Amounts received from grantor agencies, which are restricted as to use and have not been
expended for the intended uses are shown as deferred revenue.

18



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policics, continued

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using
the straight-line method.

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these
resources. The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form—prepaid items or inventories; or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

The spendable portion of the fund balances comprises the remaining four classifications:
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources
either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the City Council—the
government’s highest level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes the specified use by taking the
same type of action imposing the commitment. This classification also includes contractual
obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed
for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned fund balance. This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City’s
“intent” to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City
Council and Mayor have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.
Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are
reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance. This fund balancc is the residual classification for the General
Fund. It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to

use externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources—committed, assigned,
and unassigned—in order as needed.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continucd

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
expenditures arc recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund. Any
encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as appropriate constraints of fund balances if
they meet the definitions and criteria as outlined above.

Pension Plan
Substantially all cmployees of the City participate in the Public Employees' Retirement System
(PERS) administered by the State of Alaska.

Cash and Investments

The City of North Pole utilizes a central treasury that is available for use by all funds. Each
fund's portion of the central treasury is displayed on the balance sheet as "cash and investments"
or included in "due to other funds."

Investment Policy
The City does not have formal policies governing the types of investments it is authorized to

hold.

Reconciliation of Deposit and investment Balances
The following is a reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances to the financial

statements as of December 31, 2011.

Bank deposits $3,173,445
Other 250
$ 3,173,695

Reconciliation to the basic financial statements:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Totals
Cash and investments $ 2,078,769 786,340 2,865,109
Restricted cash 40.843 267.743 308.586

$2119612 1054083 3,173,695

Custodial credit risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. To limit its exposure to custodial credit
risk, City policy requires that all deposits be fully insured or collateralized.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

(3) Capital Assets

Capital assct activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2011 Additions Deletions 2011
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated —
Land and land improvements $_ 365316 - - 365316
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,540,662 - - 3,540,662
Office furniture and equipment 1,513,230 - - 1,513,230
Vehicles and equipment 2,768,508 4,209 - 2,772,717
Infrastructure 1,733206 _ - - 1,733,206
Total assets being depreciated 9.555.606 4.209 - 9,559,815
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 2,361,742 115,722 - 2,477,464
Office furniture and equipment 962,579 100,550 - 1,063,129
Vehicles and equipment 2,075,504 183,785 - 2,259,289
Infrastructure 327.275 86.660 - 413.935
Total accumulated depreciation _5.727,100 486.717 - 6,.213.817
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 3,828,506 _(482,508) - 3.345,998
Governmental activity capital
asscts, net $_4,193822 _(482,508) - 3. 711314
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements $ 378415 12,000 - 390,415
Construction in progress 967.608 2,794.939  599.799 3.162.748
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 1,346,023 2.806.939  599.799 3,553,163
Capital assets being depreciated:
Sewer and water system 32,130,582 4,526,946 - 36,657,528
Machinery and equipment 1,177.279 599,799 - 1,777.078
Total assets being depreciated  33.307.861 5,126,745 - 38.434.606

21



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Capital Assets, continued

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2011 Additions  Deletions 2011
Business-type activities, continued
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Sewer and water system $ 21,562,853 964,218 - 22,527,071
Machinery and equipment 554.143 97.187 - 651,330
Total accumulated depreciation 22,116,996 1.061.405 - 23,178.401
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 11.190.865 4,065.340 - 15,256,205
Business-type activity capital
assets, net $12,536,888 6,872279 599,799 18,809,368
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:
Governmental activities
General government $ 36,070
Public safety 327,895
Public works 111,930
Community services 10,822

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ _486,717

Business-type activities

Water $ 371492
Sewer 689,913
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1,061,405

(4) Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended

December 31, 2011:

Balance Balance Due
January 1, December 31, Within
2011 Additions Retired 2011 One Year
Governmental activities
General Obligation Bonds -
$1,350,000 2005 Series B bonds,

due in annual installments of

$50,000 to $105,000 through

May 1, 2025; plus variable

interest at 4.00%to 5.25%  $ 1,120,000 - 50,000 1,070,000 55,000
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Long-Term Debt, continued

23

Balance Balance Duc
January 1, December 31, Within
2011 Additions Retired 2011 One Year
Governmental activities, continued
Special Assessment Bonds -
$300,000 2002 wutility special
assessment bonds, due in annual
installments of $16,890 through
June 20, 2019; including interest
at 4.75% $ 122,859 - 11,062 111,797 11,440
Capital lease obligation for police
vehicle, payable in annual install-
ments of $16,824 including interest
at 6.10% 30,801 - 14,945 15,856 15,856
Capital lease obligation for police
vehicle, payable in annual install-
ments of $16,904 including interest
a1 6.75% 30,670 - 14,834 15,836 15,836
Capital lease obligation for a copier,
payablc in various monthly amounts
including interest at 10.49% 8,157 - 2,363 5,794 2,624
Capital lease obligation for a fire
pumper truck, payable in annual
installments of $46,944 including
interest at 4.615% through 2016 239,367 - 35318 204,049 35318
Accrued leave 180,206 252288 261,322 _ 171,172 171172
Total govermmental activities 1,732,060 252288 389.844 1,594,504  307.246
Unamortized bond premium 25,554 15971
$1,757.614 1.610.475



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Long-Term Debt, continucd
Balance Balance Due

January 1, December 31, Within
2011 Additions Retired 2011 One Year

Business-type activities

Revenue bonds —
$647,600 1998 utility revenue
bonds, due in semi-annual
installments of $18,483 including
intcrest at 4.875% through
March 1, 2038 $ 555,870 - 9,978 545,892 10,461

Note payable —
$500,000 2007 Water Utility
Alaska Drinking Water loan,
due in annual installments of
$25,000 plus interest at
1.5% through April 1, 2026 400,000 - 25,000 375,000 25,000

Accrued leave 18,511 14,206 9.591 23,126 23.126
Total business-type activities $974.381 14206 44569 944,018 58,587
Governmental activitics

The annual debt service requirements of the general obligation bonds and loans outstanding at
December 31, 2011 that are in repayment status follow:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Special Assessment Bonds
December 31, Principal  Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2012 $ 55,000 52,280 107,280 11,440 5450 16,890
2013 55,000 49,530 104,530 11,995 4,895 16,890
2014 60,000 46,655 106,655 12,577 4,313 16,890
2015 65,000 43,530 108,530 13,188 3,702 16,890
2016 65,000 40,280 105,280 13,828 3,062 16,890
2017-2021 380,000 146,691 526,691 48,769 5,200 53,969

2022-2025 390,000 39,506 429,506 - - -

$1070,000 418472 1488472 111,797 26,622 138419
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Long-Term Debt, continued
Business-type activities

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Note Payable
December 31 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 10,461 26,504 36,965 25,000 5,625 30,625
2013 10,978 25,987 36,965 25,000 5,250 30,250
2014 11,520 25,445 36,965 25,000 4,875 29,875
2015 12,088 24,877 36,965 25,000 4,500 29,500
2016 12,685 24,280 36,965 25,000 4,125 29,125
2017-2021 73,452 111,373 184,825 125,000 15,000 140,000
2022-2026 93,454 91,371 184,825 125,000 5,625 130,625
2027-2031 118,901 65,924 184,825 - - -
2032-2036 202,353 33546  235.899 - - -

$545,892 429307 975,199 375,000 45,000 420,000

Capital Leases
The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of three police

vehicles, a fire engine, and a copier. These lcase agreements qualify as capital leases for
accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments. The following is a summary of the assets acquired with the capital
leases that have an outstanding balance as of December 31, 2011:

General Fund

Machinery and equipment $ 528,083
Less accumulated depreciation (232.823)
Carrying value $ 295,260
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Capital Leases, continued
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under these capital leases and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments at December 31, 2011:

Year Ending
December 31 General Fund
2012 $ 83,781
2013 50,052
2014 47,203
2015 46,944
2016 46,944
Total minimum lease payments 274,924
Less intcrest portion (33.389)
Present value of future minimum
lease payments 241,535
Less current portion (69.634)
Long-term portion $ 171,901

Interfund Balances and Transfers
A schedule of interfund balances and transfers for the year ended December 31, 2011, follows:

Due to other funds:
Due to the General Fund from nonmajor funds
for short-term advances to cover operating costs $ 33,895

Transfers:
From nonmajor governmental fund to Water and Sewer
Enterprise Fund to convert fund to enterprise capital project fund  $ 103,124

Dcfined Benefit Pension Plan

The City participates in the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). PERS is a cost-
sharing multiple employer plan which covers cligible State and local government employees,
other than tcachers. The Plan was established and is administered by the State of Alaska
Dcpartment of Administration to provide pension, postemployment healthcare, death, and
disability benefits. Bencfit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be
amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. The report is available at the following
address:

Department of Administration

Division of Retirement and Benefits

P.O. Box 110203

Juneau, Alaska 99811-0203
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Conversion to Cost Sharing

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed Senate Bill (SB) 125 which converted the
existing Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) from an agent-multiple employer plan
to a cost-sharing plan with an effective date of July I, 2008. Under the cost-sharing
arrangement, the State of Alaska Division of Retirement and Benefits no longer tracks
individual employer assets and liabilities. Rather, all plan costs and past service liabilities are
shared among all participating employers. The cost-sharing plan requires a uniform
employer contribution rate of 22% of active member wages, subject to a wage floor.
Legislation provides for State contributions in the event that the annually calculated and
board adopted rate, which includes a provision to pay down the past-service liability, exceeds
22%. Any such additional contributions are recognized in these financial statements as an
on-behalf revenue and expenditure/expense.

In addition, in fiscal year 2008, the State of Alaska passed legislation (SB 123) which requires
that the employer contribution be calculated on all PERS eligible wages, including wages
attributable to the defined contribution plan described later in these footnotes.

Funding Policy
Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75% of their annual covered salary (3.21%

for pension and 3.54% for healthcare). Police and firefighters are required to contribute 7.5%
of their annual covered salary (3.57% for pension and 3.93% for healthcare).

The funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions based on actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to
accumulate assets to pay both pension and postemployment healthcare benefits when due.

Under current legislation, the employer contribution rate is statutorily capped at 22%,
however, the State of Alaska contributes any amount over 22% such that the total
contribution equals the Alaska Retirement Management Board adopted rate, generally
consistent with the actuarially determined rate.

The City’s contribution rates for 2011 were as follows:

Employer  Actuarial  GASB 43/45

Rate Rate Rate*
January to June
Pension 7.85% 9.98% 13.49%
Postemployment healthcare 14.15% 17.98% 55.87%
Total contribution rate 22.00% 27.96% 69.36%
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued
Funding Policy, continued

Employer  Actuarial ~ GASB 43/45

Rate Rate Rate*
July to December
Pension 10.48% 14.65% 13.72%
Postemployment healthcare 11.52% 16.11% 49.98%
Total contribution rate 22.00% 30.76% 63.70%

* This rate uses a 4.5% OPEB discount ratc and disregards all future Medicarc Part D payments.

The projection of futurc benefits for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of rcported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcarc cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employcr are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits are bascd on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern
of sharing benefit costs between the City and the plan members at that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial values of
asscts.

Projected benefits for financial reporting purposes do not incorporate any potential effects of
legal or contractual funding limitations.

Annual Pension and Postemployment 1lcalthcare Cost
The City is required 10 contribute 22% of covered payroll, subject to a wage floor. In addition,

the State of Alaska contributed approximately 8.76% of covered payroll to the Plan for the July
to December period. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement Number 24, the
City has recorded the State on behalf contribution in the amount of $285,843 as revenue and
expenditure/expense in these financial statements. However, because the City is not statutorily
obligated for these payments, this amount is excluded from pension and OPEB cost as described
here.

Total
Year Annual Annual Benefit City % of
Ended Pension OPEB Cost Contri- TBC
December 31 Cost Cost (TBC) butions Contributed
2011 $ 196,159 $ 277,933 $474,892 $474,892 100%
2010 198,562 255,343 453,905 453,905 100%
2009 147,573 300,522 448,095 448,095 100%
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The State of Alaska Legislature approved Senate Bill 141 to create the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) Tier 1V for employees hired after July 1, 2006 or for employees
converting from the PERS Tier [, I or III defined benefit plans. The Plan is administered by the
State of Alaska, Department of Administration, and benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature. The Alaska
Retirement Management Board may also amend contribution requirements. Included in the
Plan are individual pension accounts, retiree medical insurance plan and a separate Health
Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members pay medical premiums and
other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan. Employees are required to
contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary, and the City is required to make the following

contributions:
Others Police/Fire

Tier IV Tier IV
Individual account 5.00% 5.00%
Health reimbursement arrangement (HRA) * 3.00 3.00
Retiree medical plan 0.51 0.51
Occupational death and disability benefits 0.11 0.97

8.62 % 9.48%
*Health Reimbursement Arrangement — AS 39.30.370 requires that the employer contribute “an
amount equal to three percent of the average employer’s average annual employee
compensation.” [or actual remittance, this amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full time

or part-time employee per pay period.

Cmployees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25% per year in
employer contributions. The City and employee contributions to PERS including the HRA
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2011 were $98,149 and $79,964, respectively.

Decferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plans are available to all employees and permits them to defer
a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The provisions of
the plan require that all assets and income of the plan be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of
participants and their beneficiaries.

Risk Management
The City faces a considerable number of risks of loss, including (a) damage to and loss of

property and contents, (b) employee torts, (c) professional liability; i.e., errors and omissions, (d)
environmental damage, (e) workers' compensation; i.e., employee injuries, and (f) medical
insurance costs of employees.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, continued

Risk Management, continued

The City is self-insured for employee health benefits and group life insurance. An umbrella
policy covers individual claims in excess of $25,000 and liabilities are recorded for all claims
when they are reported to the City. The self-insurance plan is administered by Great West Life
and Annuity Insurance Company and the expenditures are recorded in the General Fund. The
City accrues estimated costs of health care based on plan maximums.

The City maintains third party insurance coverage for property and liability risks. Coverage for
property insurance exceeds $7.5 million with 90% coinsurance and a $10,000 deductible per
incident. Liability coverage includes $2 million in liability insurance and $3 million in umbrella
insurance with a $10,000 deductible. Workers compensation insurance is in accordance with
Alaska statutes. Additionally, the City has $4 million in emergency medical services
professional liability, public officials, and employment practices liability insurance, and auto and
other equipment coverage.

Contingencies

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the
grantor agencies, principally the federal and state governments. Any disallowed claims,

including amounts already collected, would become a liability.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is established to account for the revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out
basic governmental activities of the City such as police and fire protection, public works, planning,
legal services, administrative services, etc. Appropriations are made from the fund annually. The fund
will continue to exist indefinitely.

Revenue, for this and other funds, is recorded by source, i.e., taxes, State of Alaska, etc. Expenditures
are recorded first by function, then by activity and object of the expenditure.

General Fund expenditures are made primarily for current day-to-day operating expenditures and

operating equipment. Capital expenditures for large-scale public improvements, such as buildings, are
accounted for elsewhere in the Capital Project or Enterprise Funds.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
General Fund
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

Assets
Cash and investments

Receivables:
Sales taxes
Property taxes
Business licenses
Grants
Other

Total receivables
Due from other funds
Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FFund balance - unassigned

Total liabilities and fund balance
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Exhibit E-1

2011 201

1,622,311 1,105,655
328,183 334,939
1,328 2,052
6,620 7,700
2,026 2,326
2,891 886
341,048 347,903
33,895 46,975
1,997,254 1,500,533
186,649 97,677
141,168 150,445

179,886 ~
507,703 248,122
1,489,551 1,252,411
1,997,254 1,500,533




Exhibit E-2
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
General IFund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

2011 2010
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales, alcohol and use taxes $ 3,009,992 2,854,936  (155,056) 2,793,448
Property taxes 952,870 959,554 6,684 913,593
Total taxes 3,962,862 3,814,490  (148,372) 3,707,041
Business licenses 12,150 15,495 3,345 10,025
Charges for services - ambulance service 379.772 386,747 6,975 376,262
Federal government:
DOT commercial vehicle safety 10,000 3,360 (6,640) 4,220
Alaska tighway Safety Office 18,500 14,173 4,327) 13,776
DEA Task Force equipment grant - 81,133 81,133 -
Corps of Engineers 70,000 52,307 (17,693) 68,476
IRS reimbursements - 1,667 1,667 -
Economic stimulus grant - - - 15,128
Total Federal government 98,500 152,640 54,140 101,600
State of Alaska:
State revenue sharing 267,649 268,329 680 206,334
Telephone and electric cooperative taxes 59,264 59,264 - 67,145
Fisheries business taxes - 89 89 -
Liquor licenses 5,200 5,200 - 4,200
PERS relief 89,360 241,360 152,000 118,698
Total State of Alaska 421,473 574,242 152,769 396,377
Interest income 6,500 3,183 (3,317) 5,121

34



Exhibit E-2, continued

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual, continued

2011 2010
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues, continued:
Other revenues:
Candy cane donations A - 800 800 1,200
Citation revenues 107,000 110,665 3,665 145,220
Fingerprinting 8,650 10,295 1,645 8,226
Police reports 5,543 6,368 825 938
Other public safety revenues 21,400 36,473 15,073 21,687
Miscellaneous 21.000 60,325 39.325 -
Total other revenues 163,593 224,926 61,333 177,271
Total revenucs 5,044,850 5,171,723 126,873 4,773,697
Expenditures:
General government:
Administration:
Salaries and bencfits 452,578 464,966 (12,388) 430,530
Materials and supplies 60,300 60,235 65 69,019
Purchased services 153,785 145,081 8,704 162,779
Vchicle expensc 3,600 1,924 1,676 77
Insurance 22,800 19,997 2,803 21,364
Repairs and maintenance 35,000 41,377 (6,377) 35,212
Total administration 728,063 733,580 (5,517) 718,981
Municipal building II:
Purchased services 20,000 26,521 (6,521) 32,866
Repairs and maintenance - 1,557 (1,557) 15,121
Total municipal building [1 20,000 28,078 (8,078) 47,987
Total general government 748,063 761,658 (13,595) 766,968
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Exhibit E-2, continued

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual, continued

[\
(el

2011

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Expenditures, continued:

Public safety:
Police department:
Salaries and benefits $ 1,260,261 1,360,007 (99,746) 1,199,799
Materials and supplics 47,000 27,490 19,510 41,442
Purchased services 106,580 104,537 2,043 98,649
Vchicle cxpense 57,000 57,355 (355) 49,235
Insurance 125,000 98,383 26,617 122,359
Repairs and maintenance 14,500 14,028 472 14,197
Task force equipment grant expenditures - 81,133 (81,133) -
Total police department 1,610,341 1,742,933 (132,592) 1,525,681
Fire department:
Salaries and benefits 1.613,096 1,645,209 (32,113) 1,516,904
Materials and supplies 35,957 36,826 (869) 23,957
Purchased services 114,894 110,568 4,326 106,712
Vehicle expense 28,951 33,251 (4,300) 47,541
Insurance 54,000 47,230 6,770 50,498
Repairs and maintenance 12,600 13,284 (684) 15,732
Total fire department 1,859,498 1,886,368 (26,870) 1,761,344
Total public safety 3,469,839 3,629,301 (159,462) 3,287,025
Public works:
Salaries and benefits 234,247 194,624 39,623 234,485
Materials and supplies 16,000 11,385 4,615 14,196
Purchased services 175,960 67,854 108,106 42,400
Vehicle expense 7,500 7,923 (423) 7,568
Insurance 14,000 11,966 2,034 13,661
Repairs and maintenance 135,000 98,365 36,635 186,894
Total public works 582,707 392,117 190,590 499,204
Debt scrvice:
Capital lease principal 76,723 67,461 9,262 111,334
Capital lease interest 3,950 13,212 (9,262) 13,230
Total debt service 80,673 80,673 - 124,564
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Exhibit E-2, continued

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual, continued

2011 2010
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Expenditures, continued:
Community service - contributions:
North Pole Christmas on Ice $ 4,109 10,605 (6,496) 12,195
North Pole Chamber of Commerce 11,015 21,209 (10,194) 24,390
Convention and Visitors 5,099 3,535 1,564 4,065
North Pole Economic
Development Council 30,013 35,348 (5,335) 40,650
Other - 137 (137 40
Total community service - contributions 50,236 70,834 (20,598) 81,340
Capital expenditures:
Police vehicles - - - 95,199
Fire department copier - - - 10,117
Total capital expenditures - - - 105,316
Total expenditures 4931518 4,934,583 (3,065) 4,864,417
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 113,332 237,140 123,808 (90,720)
Other financing sources:
Proceeds from capital leases - - - 105,316
Transfers in - - - 7,688
Transfers out (113,332) - 113,332 -
Net other financing sources (uses) (113,332) - 113.332 113,004
Net change in fund balance $ - 237,140 237,140 22,284
Beginning fund balance 1,252,411 1,230,127
Ending fund balance $ 1,489,551 _),252,41]
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are established to finance particular activities and are created from receipts of
designated revenucs.

Building Department
This fund is used to accumulate moneys from the building permits and inspections.

Fire Department
This fund is uscd to account for the maintenance and improvement of the firc department.

North Pole Community Ice Rink
This fund accounts for the activities related to the development of thc community ice rink project.

North Pole Festival
This fund is used to record donations and expenditures for summer and winter festivals and the

Mayor’s picnic.

Abadc
This fund is used to accumulate monies for the multi-jurisdictional task force grant.

Abade State Forfeitures
This fund is uscd to record state public safety forfeitures and expenditures for public safety

AHSO
This fund is used to account for the Alaska Highway Safety traffic inspection grants.

JAG
This fund is used to account for the State Department of Public Safety JAG grant.

Capital Project Funds arc established to account for the resources expended to acquire or construct
assets of a relatively permanent nature.

General Capital Projccts
This fund is used to account for the City’s various capital improvement projects that are not
included in the Watcr and Scewer Enterprise Fund.
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general obligation bond, and special assessment debt principal, interest and related costs for issuances
that arc not accounted for in the Enterprise Fued.

42



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Debt Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance
Ycar Ended December 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

Revenues:
Special assessments
Investment income
Total revenues

Expenditures - debt service:
2005 Series B G.O. bonds:
Principal
Interest
Total 2005 series B G.O. bonds

2002 special asscssment bonds:
Principal
Interest
Total 2002 special asscssment bonds

Other
Total expenditurcs

Net change in fund balance
Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance
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Exhibit G-1

2011 2010
74,925 94,922
58,285 90,553

133,210 185,475
50,000 50,000
54,905 57,155

104,905 107,155
11,062 10,560

5,828 6,330
16,890 16,890

= 810
121,795 124,855
11,415 60,620
253,704 193,084
265,119 253,704




MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND

The Enterprisc Fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private busincss cnterprise — where the intent of the government’s council is that the costs of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or where the government’s council has decided that periodic
determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

Water and Sewer
This fund accounts for the operations of the water and sewer system.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2011
With Comparative Amounts for 2010

Operating revenues - charges for services:
Water
Sewer
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Water:
Salaries and benefits
Materials and supplies
Purchased services
Vehicle expense
[nsurance
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Total water

Sewer:
Salaries and benefits
Materials and supplies
Purchased services
Vehicle expense
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Bad debt expense

Total sewer

Total operating expenses
Loss from operations

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State of Alaska PERS relief
Sludge removal grant revenue
Sludge removal grant expenses
Interest expense
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

[.oss before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in

Change in net assets
Beginning net assets

Ending net assets
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2011 2010

813,736 862,783
790,841 911,931
1,604,577 1,774,714
240,982 225,713
42,339 79,220
270,054 308,924
9,925 5,671
17,017 31,707
365 444
371,492 263,116
2,906 5.022
955,080 919,817
323,322 314,498
81,897 28,573
280,415 309,154
8,040 7,742
17,256 30,012
273 220
689,913 488,645
2,140 622
1,403,256 1,179,466
2,358,336 2,099,283

(753,759) (324,569)

36,965 19,478
403,564 -

(581,732) 3
(31,639) (35,305)

(172,842) (15,827)

(926,601) (340,396)

7,280,384 2,819,779
103,124 -
6,456,907 2,479,383
12,441,111 9,961,728
18,898,018 12,441,111




lixhibit I-1
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Catalog of
I‘ederal Federal
DNomestic Total Share of
Grant Assislance Grant Expend-
lFedera! Grant Title Number Number Award _ttures
Department of Agriculture
Direct Program - Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communitics 60-002-1385 10.760  § 750000 _ 93.847
Department of Justice
Direct program - Organized Crime Drug Linforcement Task Force PA-OR-0004-10 16.0CDETFE 81,133 81.133
Passed through State of Alaska Department of Public Safcty:
lidward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program:
Multijurisdictional Task Force 2011 JAG 11-023D 16.738 R3,521 24252
Multijurisdictional Task Force 2012 JAG 12-023D 16.738 75,984 16,101
Total CFDA 16.738 40,353
Equitable Sharing - Seized Assels - 16.000 60,384 60,384
Total Department of Justice _ 181.870
Department of the Treasury
Direct program - Treasury Forfeiture Fund - Currency Crimes Task Force - 21LTEF 15,000 1,667
Department of Transportation
PPassed through State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilinies:
Aleohol Open Container Requirements Grant - Impaired Driving 2012 154 AL 12-01-03 20.607 3,983 360
Alcohol Open Container Requirements Grant - Impaired Driving 2011 134 AL 11-01-03 20.607 13.530 10,363
Aleohol Open Container Requirements Grant - Traffic Enforcement Oiticer 2012 154 AL 10-01-14 20.607 107,176 21,300
Alcohol Open Container Requirements Grant - Traftic Bnforcement Ollicer 2011 134 AL 11-01-15 20.607 156,929 70,057
Total CFDA 20.607 102,082
State and Community Highway Safety - Seatbell Enforcement 2011 402 PT 11-06-01 20.600 4017 3449
Total Department of Transportation 105,531
Department of Energy
Passed through Alaska Energy Authority -
ARRA-Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 7510037 81.128 174.000 917

Environmental Protection Agency
Dircet Program - Congressionally Mandated Projects XP-00110701 66.202 970,000 970,000
Passed through the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation -
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds - Clean Water Loan -

Sewer Life Station Renovation - (90% Forgiven) 633151 66.458 1,922,222 69,376
Total Environmental Protection Agency 1,039,376
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $  1.423,208

Note 1:_Basis of Presentation

Fhe Schedule ot Expenditures of Federal Awards meludes the federal grant activity of the City of North Pole
and is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in the schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements ol OMB Circular A-133. Audits of States, Local Governments ard
Non-Profit Organizations,
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Exhibit J-1
CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Schedule of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended Dccember 31, 2011

Grant Grant
State Grant Title Number Award  Expenditures
Department of Commerce, Community and
Economic Development
Fire Department Equipment Upgrades and Replacement 11-DC-314 § 95,000 16,398
Water Treatment Plant Roof Improvements 08-DC-471 160,000 5,100
Rehabilitate North Pole Utility Well 09-DC-505 147,500 39,728
Senior Center Equipment Upgrades 11-DC-315 50,000 8,522
* Community Revenue Sharing - 200,737 268,329
Total Department of Commerce, Community and
Economic Development 338,077
Department of Environmental Conservation
* Scwer Lift Station Renovation 63317 2,204,851 1,612,285
* Wastewater Treatment Plant Sludge Removal 63318 595,000 403,564
Utility Garage Construction 63319 524,977 10,003
Wastewater Plant Engincering and Design 63321 125,000 30,098
Wastewater Plant Engincering and Design 63320 125,000 1,185
Total Department of Environmental Conservation 2,057,135
Department of Public Safety
Asset Forfeitures - 1,356 1,356
Department of Administration )
* PERS on Behalf - 285,843 285,843
Dcpartment of Transportation and Public Facilities
North Pole Equipment - 50,000 4,209
Department of Revenue
Electric and Telephone Co-op Tax - 59,264 59,264
Shared Fisheries Business Taxes - 89 89
Liquor Licenses - 5,200 5,200
Total Department of Revenue 64,553
Total State Financial Assistance $ 2,751,173

*Major program

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of State Financial Assistance includes the Statc grant activity of the City of North Pole
and is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in the schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance
Supplement for State Single Audits.
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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Mlkunda, MCGLADREY ALLIANCE ‘ B McGladrey
COttI'CH & CO, Inc.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activitics, the busincss-type activitics,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Polc, Alaska as
of and for the yecar ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the City of North Pole’s
basic financial statcments and have issued our report thercon dated XXXX, 2012. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Statcs of Amcrica
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of City of North Pole is responsible for cstablishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considercd City of North
Pole’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purposc of
cxpressing an opinion on the effectivencss of City of North Polc’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivencss of City of North Pole’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control cxists when the design or opcration of a control does not allow
management or employces, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficicncies, in internal control such that therc is a rcasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prcvented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any dcficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be matcrial weaknesses, as defined above.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Compliance and Other Mattcts

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of North Pole’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a dircct
and matcrial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with thosc provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not cxpress such an opinion. The results of our tests discloscd no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Honorable Mayor and
City Council, others within the cntity, federal and state awarding agencies and, if applicable, pass-
through entitics, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specificd parties.

Anchorage, Alaska
XXXX, 2012

50



Mlkunda, McGLADREY ALance | B McGladrey
COHZI'CH & CO, Inc.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with
OMB Circular A-133

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Compliance

We havc audited City of North Pole’s compliance with the types of compliancc requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and matcrial
effect on each of City of North Pole’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2011. City of North Pole’s major federal programs are identificd in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of City of North Pole’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on City of North Pole’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliancc in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the Unitcd States of Amcrica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 rcquire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whcther noncompliance with the types of compliance requircments rcferred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of North Pole’s compliance with those rcquircments
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We belicve
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit docs not provide a legal
determination on City of North Pole’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of North Pole complied, in all material respects, with the compliance

rcquircments refcrred to above that could have a direct and material cffcct on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of North Pole is responsible for establishing and maintaining cffective internal
control over compliance with the requirecments of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of North Polc’s
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program to determing the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, wec do not express an opinion on the cffectiveness
of City of North Pole’s intcrnal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance cxists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or cmployces, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timcly basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a rcasonablc possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not dcsigned to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. Wc
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intcnded solely for the information and use of City of North Polc’s management,
Honorable Mayor and City Council, others within the cntity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-
through cntities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than thesc specified
partics.

Anchorage, Alaska
XXXX, 2012
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Mikunda, Meaixbmey Accance | B McGladrey
Cottrell & Co., .

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and
Material Effect on Fach Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Compliance

We have audited City of North Polc’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits
that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of North Pole’s major state programs for
the ycar cnded December 31, 2011. City of North Pole’s major statc programs arc identificd in the
accompanying Schedule of State Financial Assistance. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the rcsponsibility
of City of North Pole’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of North
Pole’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United Statcs; and the State of Alaska
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Those standards and the State of
Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a dircct and matcrial cffcct on a major
state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of North
Pole’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit docs not provide a legal determination on City of North Pole’s compliance with
those requirements.

In our opinion, City of North Pole complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material cffect on cach of its major state
programs for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of North Pole is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to state programs. I[n planning and performing our audit, we considered City of North Pole’s
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major state program to dectermine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the cffectivencss of City of North Pole’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficicneies, in internal control over compliance,
such that therc is a rcasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be preventad, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of intcrnal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencics, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and usc of City of North Pole's management,
Honorable Mayor and City Council, others within the entity, and the State of Alaska, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified partics.

Anchorage, Alaska
XXXX, 2012
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issucd Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X no

» Significant dcficiency(ies) identified? yes _ X  nonc reported

o Noncompliance matcrial to financial

statements noted? yes _X no
Federal Financial Assistance

Internal control over major programs:

o Matcrial weakness(cs) identified? __yes _X no

e Significant deficicncy(ics) identified? yes _ X  none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance

for major programs? Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that arc required to

be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of

Circular A-133? yes _X no
Identification of major programs:

CFDA
Agency Number Name of Fedcral Program or Cluster

Environmental Protection Agency 66.202 Congressionally Mandated Projects
Dollar threshold used to distinguish bctween

Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _ yes no
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued

Summary of Auditor’s Results, continued
State Financial Assistance

Internal control over major programs:

¢ Matcrial weakness(es) identified? yes _ X
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes _X

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs? Unqualified

Dollar threshold used to distinguish a
state major program? $75,000

II. Financial Statement Findings
None noted.

IIL.Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None noted.

IV.State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Financial Statement Findings

There were no prior year audit findings.

Federal Award Findings

There were no prior year audit findings.

State Award Findings

There were no prior year audit findings.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
Corrective Action Plan

Year Ended December 31, 2011

There are no current year findings; therefore no corrective action plan is required.
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Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas W. Isaacson
Introduced and Adopted: May 7, 2012

CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 12-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO ENTER INTO A
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE SANTA’S SENIOR CENTER TO
IMPLEMENT THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT #11-CDBG-004
ADMINITERED BY THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY
AND ECONIMIC DEVELOPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $73,261 FOR THE SENIOR
CENTER KITCHEN UPGRADE PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole in cooperation with the Santa’s Senior Center membership
and through public meetings identified needs in the community to expand community
development and economic opportunities within the City; and

WHEREAS, City identified upgrades to the Senior Center kitchen ventilations system and
supporting infrastructure at the Senior Center facility as the most reasonable Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) eligible project; and

WHEREAS, the City submitted a CDBG application to the Department of Commerce,
Community and Economic Development (DCCED) for the purpose of meeting such need; and

WHEREAS, the City received notification from DCCED that it was eligible to receive a CDBG
in the amount of $73,261.00 for the proposed Senior Center Kitchen Upgrade Project; and

WHEREAS, the Senior Center shall make a cash contribution to the project up to $24,420.00

WHEREAS, the City and Senior Center desire to enter into a written cooperative agreement
with each other to participate in a CDBG-funded Senior Center Kitchen Upgrade Project; and

WHEREAS, the City and Senior Center understand that the City will have the responsibility to
assume all obligations under terms of the grant including assuring compliance with all applicable
laws and program regulations and performance of all work in accordance with the contract; and

WHEREAS, it is understood by the City and Senior Center that DCCED shall have access to all
participants’ grant records and authority to monitor all activities.

WHEREAS, for the useful life of the facility the Senior Center membership will receive the
specific benefit of a senior citizen community center with a commercial-grade kitchen facility for
the local senior population community functions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the North Pole City Council of the City of
North Pole that the City authorizes the Mayor to enter into a cooperative agreement with the
Santa’s Senior Center to implement an Alaska Department Commerce, Community and



Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas W. Isaacson
Introduced and Adopted: May 7, 2012

Economic Development Community Development Block Grant for the Senior Kitchen Upgrade
Project.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole city council on
May 7, 2012.

Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor
City of North Pole

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk



125 Snowman Lane

North Pole, Alaska 99705 Clty Of North POle
907) 488-8593 , ! )
5907; 488-3002 (fax) Director of City Services

bill@northpolealaska.com

Memo

To: North Pole City Council

From: Bill Butler

Date: May 15, 2012

Subject: Requested revisions to Resolution 12-11: Authorization to enter into a cooperative agreement

with the Santa’s Senior Center for a Community Development Block Grant

The language in Resolution 12-11 states Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funded benefits would
be dedicated to the Santa Seniors kitchen renovation project for a minimum of 5 years. This period came from a
conversation with Janet Davis, Director of the Fairbanks Department of Commerce Community and Economic
Development (DCCED) at a grant workshop held on September 29, 2011. She and I also discussed the benefits of
limited multiple audiences benefiting from a CDBG funded project. In fairness to Ms. Davis, my concept of a
specific project was still under development, so these conversations may not have been wholly applicable to the
grant application I submitted in 2012 and the subsequent Resolution 12-11.

A section of the grant application guidance called Site Control states the recipient of the grant should maintain
control of the property "usually for not less than twenty years." The City owns the property where the Senior
Center is located and my understanding is the City has no intention to sell the property and the City intends to
continue to rent the building to the Senior Center. My grant application referenced the City’s intention to sign a
new 10 year lease with the Senior Center within a few months. I misinterpreted DCCED’s purpose of the 20 year
site control recommendation as not being directly linked with the project benefits for 20 years.

Another concern that influenced the language I included in Resolution 12-11 was the reference to the City
guaranteeing the project benefits for a minimum of 5 years for the Senior Center. I had this concern due to the
uncertain lifespan of the Senior Center building. The building was built in 1965 and unforeseen structural or other
issues could shorten the lifespan of the structure. Also, some members of the Senior Center have expressed
interest in initiating a capital campaign to build a new Senior Center. Should either of these or another issue arise
that lessens the useable lifespan of the kitchen renovations, I did not want to unnecessarily restrict the City’s
options.

A concern of DCCED is the eligible population for whom the grant is intended to serve. The intended population
is the limited clientele population senior citizens. If the project was intended for the entire community, dedicating
the project benefits to different populations would not be an issue; however, because the intended audience is a
limited audience, the City has less flexibility to transfer the project benefits to other groups in the future.

The DCCED grant administrator suggested language changes to Resolution 12-11 that will satisfy the City and
DCCED’s concerns. Instead of the City guaranteeing the project benefits be limited to a minimum of 5 years, the
proposed changed language is “the useful life of the facility.” DCCED also requested that references to other
groups using the renovated kitchen at the Senior Center be deleted. The Senior Center will still be permitted to let
other groups use the kitchen, DCCED just wants it clearly stated that the beneficiaries of the project are the North
Pole area senior population.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 12-11

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO ENTER INTO A
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE SANTA’S SENIOR CENTER TO
IMPLEMENT THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT #11-CDBG-004
ADMINITERED BY THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COM Y
AND ECONIMIC DEVELOPMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $73,261 FOR THE% R

CENTER KITCHEN UPGRADE PROJECT 0

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole in cooperation with the Santa’s Senior C& 0 Hhe
and through public meetings identified needs in the community to expand comnitf
development and economic opportunities within the City; and é?

WHEREAS, City identified upgrades to the Senior Center kitchen %ﬁions system and
supporting infrastructure at the Senior Center facility as the mom nable Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) eligible project; and sty

WHEREAS, the City submitted a CDBG appllcatlo g Ypartment of Commerce,
Community and Economic Development (DCC purpose of meeting such need; and
m

WHEREAS, the City received notification fro CED that it was eligible to receive a CDBG
in the amount of $73,261.00 for the propos nior Center Kitchen Upgrade Project; and

WHEREAS, the Senior Center shall QJ cash contribution to the project up to $24,420.00

WHEREAS the City and Sem l%ﬂer desire to enter into a written cooperative agreement
¢ fma CDBG-funded Senior Center Kitchen Upgrade Project; and

anthSe nior Center understand that the City will have the responsibility to
assume all obhg af 'on Ad r terms of the grant including assuring compliance with all applicable
JMations and performance of all work in accordance with the contract; and

WHEREAS it is nder:;tood by the City and Senior Center that DCCED shall have access to all
particip@ ant records and authority to monitor all activities.

WHEREAS, for a—m’:ﬂ’rmﬂm—eﬁhve—yeﬂfs ﬂte useful life of the facility the Senior Center

membership will receive the specific benefit of a senior citizen
commumty center with a commercial-grade kitchen facility available-predeminately for the local

senior populatlon community ﬁmctlons Mﬂ&eﬂm&m&&&y&ﬁuﬂeﬂﬁm—m{—n&d

s and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the North Pole City Council of the City of
North Pole that the City authorizes the Mayor to enter into a cooperative agreement with the
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Santa’s Senior Center to implement an Alaska Department Commierce, Community and
Economic Development Community Development Block Grant for the Senior Kitchen Upgrade
Project.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole city council on

May 7, 2012.
Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor e,

City of North Pole

ATTEST: 6%

o0

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC &
North Pole City Clerk ,0,
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